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Design Review RFP (SFMTA 2017-27)  
Questions and Answers Document 

 
1. Can a proposer submit as a prime and as a subconsultant on another team?  

Answer: A proposer can submit as a prime and as a subconsultant.  
 

2. Has any specific contract amount been established? This would be helpful given that it’s hard to 

determine how much work will be allocated to LBE members of the submittal team without a 

clear sense of budget and scope.  

Answer: We are sensitive to this concern as it has been raised on other as-needed RFP’s issued by 
the SFMTA. Proposers should provide their good faith estimate of the percentage to be allocated to 
each team member based on previous experience with projects requiring similar, comprehensive 
services as requested by the RFP. 
 

3. What if a team serves, under this contract, in a design review capacity for a given project and 

that project is suspended for several years and then becomes an active project once again? 

Would that team be precluded from serving as the lead designer for the project once it has been 

reviewed and subsequently reintroduced?  

Answer: This scenario is not likely to occur, as it would only arise if a project were abandoned and 

then reintroduced at a later date. For the vast majority of capital projects that the SFMTA 

undertakes, there will only be two design roles—that of the lead designer and that of the third 

party design reviewer. In the unlikely event that this situation were to arise, a conflict of interest 

determination would be made on a case by case basis, depending in part on the level of design 

work completed prior to the project’s being suspended. Please also note that the initial contract 

term is three years, and the SFMTA has the option to add two additional three year terms.  If the 

Contractor signs a contract, the Contractor is obligated to provide services for the contract term for 

which it has agreed to.  

 

4. Could you please talk about the conflict of interest provision in this RFP?  

Answer: The conflict of interest language is outlined in Section I.D of the addendum to the RFP that 

was issued on May 17th, 2017. We strongly encourage design and engineering teams to respond to 

this RFP. The conflict of interest language is provided to ensure proposers that their response to 

this RFP does not preclude them from serving in a lead design/engineering role on a future SFMTA 

capital project. For that particular project and task order, the subject design/engineering team 

would be precluded from serving in a third party design review role; but the subject team could 

serve in a design review role on other projects and task orders.  

 

5. Could you provide any examples of the kinds of SFMTA projects for which these third party 

design review services would be needed?  
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Answer: The SFMTA is currently working with the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community 

Development (MOHCD) on a Transit Oriented Development that would be located adjacent to and 

above the Central Subway Station at 4th Street and Folsom Street. A Transit Oriented Development 

at that location would have to interface with the Central Subway station. A third party design 

reviewer would scrutinize the design and construction of the development to ensure that it does 

not negatively impact the structural integrity and function of that station. Also, the SFMTA is 

examining the possibility of development on some of its parking assets. A third party design 

reviewer could be retained to ensure that any replacement public parking facilities at those 

locations are well designed and meet the SFMTA’s needs.  

 

6. Could you please describe the architecture and design disciplines required? Is there any 

particular design expertise that is needed?  

Answer: The RFP clearly describes the expertise that is required in Section III.C.3.c. Generally 

speaking, the SFMTA is looking for experienced, well qualified teams that have expertise in a 

comprehensive range of design and engineering fields. The RFP also requires that the submittal 

team have experience in the design of transit and/or transportation facilities.  

   

7. How does LBE participation in a Joint Venture (JV) partnership count towards the LBE 

subcontracting goal?  

Answer:  LBE prime participation (whether as a sole prime contractor or as a JV partner) does not 

count towards achieving the RFP’s 25% LBE subcontracting goal.  Such participation does count 

towards the additional 35% LBE participation in excess of the established LBE subcontracting goal 

that excuses the proposer from documenting its good faith outreach efforts as described in CMD 

Form 2B. 

 

8. Will responses to questions be sent to all potential respondents?  

Answer: Yes, questions and answers will be posted on the RFP web page 

(http://mission.sfgov.org/OCABidPublication/BidDetail.aspx?K=12004) and will be sent to those 

who attended the pre-proposal conference and who provided their e-mail address. 

 

9. Please describe the task order process by which work will be assigned.  

Answer: Please see Section I.A of the RFP. Work for each task order will be awarded on a 

competitive basis. The specific evaluation criteria will be outlined in each task order but will likely 

consist of some combination of proposed price, approach, and overall team capacity to complete 

the work.  

 

10. Does the SFMTA have any preference for who should serve as the prime consultant? Should the 

prime be an architect?  

Answer: The SFMTA is fine with any design professional serving as the prime consultant, whether 

that firm be an architecture firm or an engineering firm. The SFMTA does not have a preference, 

but the prime should be a firm that has the capacity, experience, and responsiveness to serve in an 

overall project management role, e.g. ensuring regular communications with the SFMTA, 

responding to inquiries in a timely manner, adhering to the project schedule.   

http://mission.sfgov.org/OCABidPublication/BidDetail.aspx?K=12004
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11. Can a subconsultant be on more than one team?   

Answer:  Yes. 

12. Can you please confirm that you would like to see the number of years of experience for each 
member of the proposer’s team (including the sub consultants) with each skill set described in 
the RFP? 
Answer: Per Section III.C.3.c of the RFP, for each of the required skill sets, the proposer must 

indicate the proposer team’s cumulative years of experience with the subject skill set. Please 

indicate which member(s) of the team possesses experience in the subject skill set and how many 

years of experience that team member or members have in that skill set. Please also refer to 

Section IV.B.1.a for the minimum qualifications that a proposer must demonstrate.  

 
13. Can you please confirm that you would like to see five projects from each member of the team 

(including sub consultants), the proposer (including both JV partners separately)?  
Answer: Per Section III.C.3.c of the RFP, the list of no more than five representative projects is 

organized by skill set, not by team member. For example, the list of representative projects for a 

given skill set could be culled from projects completed by one or more team members—e.g. three 

transportation projects completed by one team member and two transportation projects 

completed by another team member. Please also refer to Section IV.B.1.a for the minimum 

qualifications that a proposer must demonstrate. 

 
14. For the resumes, do you only want the resumes of those individuals on the organization chart, or 

does SFMTA want to see the number of resumes our firm(s) have for each discipline (even if they 
do not appear on the org chart)?  
Answer: The organization chart should show all “key personnel” on the proposer team. It is up to 

the discretion of the proposer to determine who on the team is considered “key personnel.” The 

proposer should only provide descriptions of professional experience and qualifications (including 

brief resumes if the proposer deems resumes to be the most appropriate format) for key 

personnel, i.e. those personnel listed on the organization chart.  

 
15. In Appendix D, items #1 and #2 refer to "Section VI.J of the above RFP"; however, there is no 

Section VI.J included in the RFP.  Please clarify.  
Answer: That reference should be corrected to “Section V.I of the above RFP.” The SFMTA will issue 

an addendum to correct this error on Appendix D.  

 

16. In Addendum #1, Submission Requirements, Sections III.B through III.D appear to have been 
deleted. Do they still apply?  
Answer: Sections III.B through III.D still apply. Addendum 1 only covers those sections of the RFP 
that have changed in any way.  

 
17. Does the requirement of providing a Management Plan (ref. CMD attachment 2 section 2.02.A.6) 

only apply to Joint Venture primes or does it also apply to Primes who are not Joint Ventures?   
Answer:  The requirement to submit a Management Plan applies only to a Joint Venture that is 

seeking an LBE Rating Bonus. 
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18. What level of detail is expected in this management plan?  For a typical, say, design project, the 
plan would include schedules, milestones and deliverables but due to the undefined scope for 
this RFP (i.e. tasks not yet assigned), these details cannot be established except in the most 
general terms.   
Answer: The Management Plan should provide as much detail as you are able to provide at this 

time. 

 

19. On page 4 of the RFP, under the list of potential task order services, paragraph number 6, 

SFMTA’s adopted facility standards, is mentioned as a project reference. Where can these SFMTA 

facility standards be found?  

Answer: The SFMTA’s transit facility standards are currently in draft form but will likely be 
completed and available for review by the time contracts under this RFP are executed.  

 


